R. Singhvi & Associates
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO
THE MEMBERS

VANYA STEELS PRIVATE LIMITED
BANGALORE

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of VANYA STEELS PRIVATE LIMITED
(“the company”), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31% March 2022, the Statement of Profit
and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and
the Statement of Changes in Equity, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 as amended
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31% March 2022 and
its profits including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any_form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

mi

resentations, or the override of internal control.
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e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of

—~account.
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d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. B

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the
Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure B” of this report. ]

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements — Refer note 42 to the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the company to or in any other person(s) or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall

1. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

2. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s)
or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company
shall

1. whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

2. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; -

c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has to come our notice that has

caused us to believe that the representations under the sub clause (iv) (1) &
% k2)contain any material misstatement.

P
.,
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v. No dividend has been declared or paid by the company.

h. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section
197(16): In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company is incorporated as a private company and thus the provision of section
197(16) of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

For R. Singhvi & Associates,
Chartered Accountants,
(Firm’s\Registration No. 003879&)(,‘ A“q.,

* y 4»:: ::/ M\\{
i Bangalore | » |

CA Subhash Chand Smghvr.( \. ] &

Partner I

(Membership No. 024534)  “~&d Aot~

UDIN: 22024534BDYFKQ2354

Date: 27" September 2022

Place: Bangalore
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of VANYA STEELS PRIVATE LIMITED of even date)
i. In respect of the Company’s property, plant & equipment: :

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets;

b. The property, plant & equipment of the Company were physically verified in full by the
management at reasonable intervals during the year. According to the information
and explanations given to us and as examined by us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

c. The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee) are held in the name of the Company.

d. The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
use assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2022.

e. According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, there are no proceedings initiated or are
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition
of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

i. In respect of the company’s inventory,

a. The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year and no material discrepancies in excess of 10% were
noticed on such physical verification for each class of inventory. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification by the management is reasonable and the coverage and
procedure for such verification is appropriate.

b. The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores in
aggregate from banks and/or financial institutions during the year on the basis of
security of current assets of the Company. The deviations noted between the books
of accounts and the quarterly returns/statements filed with such banks and financial
institutions have been disclosed in Note no 55 of the financial statements.

iii. According to information and information given to us, the Company has-not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, thus the paragraph 3(iii)(a) to
3(iii)(f) of the order is not applicable to the company.

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making
investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

V. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed
deposits as at March 31, 2022 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

Vi. The Central Government of India has prescribed the maintenance of cost records under

_-sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the activities carried on. by the company. In
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our opinion and as per the information and explanation provided tovus, all the accounts
and records as specified have been maintained properly.

Vii. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books
of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including income-tax, goods and
service tax and other material statutory dues have been generally regularly deposited
during the year by the company with the appropriate authorities.
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit
procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these
statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
company examined by us, the statutory dues which have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of dispute are as follows —

Period to
Name of the Nature of | Amount (Rs. | which the Forum where the dispute is
statute the dues in Lakhs) amount relates | pending
The Income-Tax Income AY2015-16 to
Act, 1961 Tax 229.31 AY2021-22 GG, Inceme Tex and thers
viii. The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in

the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

iX. In respect of loans taken by the company,

a. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to any lender.

b. The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or any lender

c. The term loans obtained by the company have been applied for the purpose for which
it had been obtained.

d. On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds
raised for short term basis have been utilized for long-term purposes.

e. On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

f.  The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

X. A. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
examination of records of the Company, the Company has not raised moneys by way of

T
T A
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initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and hence reporting
under clause 3 (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

B. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
examination of records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures._during the year, and
hence reporting under clause 3 (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Xi. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3
(xi)(a)(b)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under cléuse 3 (xii)(a)(b)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

Xiv. The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business. The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report,
for the period under audit have been considered by us.

XV. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the
year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or
persons connected to its directors and hence requirement to report on Clause 3(xv) are
not applicable to the Company.

XVi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. As such, reporting under Clause 3 (xvi) is not applicable for the company.

XVii. The company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

xvii.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

XiX. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing, business profitability and other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Compdny is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our

.reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
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guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

XX. a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are
required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the
Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act.
b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section
135 of Companies Act.

For R. Singhvi & Associates,
Chartered Accountants,

CA Subhash Chand Singhwi~._
Partner Norog ~
(Membership No. 024534) ’
UDIN: 22024534BDYFKQ2354
Date: 27" September 2022

Place: Bangalore
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of VANYA STEELS PRIVATE
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI')".
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal-financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that=7 4 /..
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(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection -of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reportlng and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For R. Singhvi & Associates
Chartered Accountants e
(Firm\Registration No. 0038708) IR ;_‘._ 3

Partner
Membership No. 024534
UDIN: 22024534BDYFKQ2354

CA Subhash Chand Slnghm

Place: Bangalore
Date: 27" September 2022
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Vanya Steels Private Limited

(CIN: U74999KA2005PTC125578)

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

(All amount are in % Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant & equipment
Right-of-use assets
Capital work-in-progress
Financial assets
Investments
Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Non-current tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Loans
Other financial assets
Current tax assets (net)
Other current assets

Total Assets

Equity and Liabilities
Equity

Equity share capital
Other equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Other non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Current tax liabilities (net)

Total Equity and Liabilities

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes 3 to 71 form an integral part of theé

. Singhvi & Associates
red Accountants

CA Chand Singhvi *
Partner
Membership No.: 024534

Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 27, 2022

Note
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21
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23
24
25

26
27
28
29
30
31
32

/
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Director

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1,2020

6,568.22 3,465.04 3,625.57

5.44 6.91 ~
646.96 221.60 5993
47.77 45.70 45.01
159.01 4468 4468
& 5 174.98

46.00 - =
192.07 642.92 170.48
7,665.47 4,426.85 4,120.65
7177.25 3,159.27 2,005.27
1,625.94 1,925.76 2,094.41
845.60 494.42 10.50
29.52 28.51 2745
1.08 113 0.66
34223 198.36 144.16
- 46.00 4384
3,31433 369.66 351.87
13,335.95 6,221.11 4,678.16
21,001.42 10,647.96 8,798.81
1,516.02 1,516.02 1,516.02
3,825.84 1,841.49 689.46
5,341.86 3,357.51 2,205.48
3,573.70 2,545.33 2,515.44

436 5.74 -
27.03 26.28 19.42

206.32 188.90 -
1,567.97 622.00 799.61
5,379.38 3,388.25 3,334.47
6,910.33 2,195.94 1,003.01

137 1.26 -
2,052.14 1,240.60 1,622.68
247.02 73.05 94.86
676.01 378.38 531.45
12.80 1297 6.86

380.51 - -
10,280.18 3,902.20 3,258.86
21,001.42 10,647.96 8,798.81

Sunil Jallan

DIN: 02150846

Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 27, 2022

Director
DIN: 02112630

Company Secretary
M. No.: A52496



Vanya Steels Private Limited
(CIN: U74999KA2005PTC125578)

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amount are in ¥ Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Income

Expenses
Cost of materials consumed

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade, finished goods and

work-in-progress

Employee benefit expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Total Expenses

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax
Less: Exceptional items
Profit/(Loss) before tax

Tax expenses
Current tax
Deferred tax charge/(benefit)

Profit/(Loss) after tax

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of equity instruments
- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans
- Income tax relating to these items

Total comprehensive income/(loss)

Earnings/(Loss) per equity share (in ):
-Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share

Summary of significant accounting policies

CA Subhash Chand Singhvi
Partner
Membership No.: 024534

Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 27, 2022

Sunil Jallan
Director

Place: Bengaluru

DIN: 02150846

Note

33
34

35
36

37
38
39
40

52
52

45
52

Director
DIN: 02112630

Date: September 27, 2022

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

55,477.88 3175133
11989 190.23
55,597.77 31,941.56
50,001.18 29,160.29
407.96 (708.40)
356.86 280.46
45426 451.39
258.44 208.17
1,465.05 1,012.60
52,943.75 30,404.51
2,654.02 1,537.05
2,654.02 1,537.05
661.74 25:15
15.03 362.87
676.77 388.02
1,977.25 1,149.03
9.49 4.01
(2.39) (1.01)
7.10 3.00
1,984.35 1,152.03
13.04 7.58

M. No.: A52496




Vanya Steels Private Limited

(CIN: U74999KA2005PTC125578)

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amount are in ¥ Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to cash generated from
operating activities

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Impairment of trade receivables

Interest income

Finance costs

Other comprehensive income

Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in operating assets
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Inventories

Trade receivables

Loans

Other financial assets

Other non-financial assets

Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities
Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

Provisions

Other non-financial liabilities

Cash generated from/(used in) operations
Less: Income tax paid (net of refunds)
Net cash flow generated from/(used in) operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from/(payments for) PPE, intangible assets and CWIP
(Increase)/decrease in investments

Interest income

Net cash flow from investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from/(payments for) borrowings

Proceeds from issue of preference shares

Payment of lease liabilities

Finance costs

Net cash inflow from/(used in) financing activities (C)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

2,654.02 1,537.05
258.44 208.17
105.47 8.42

(118.49) (188.51)
45426 451.39

9.49 4.01
3,363.19 2,020.53
(1.01) (1.06)
(4,019.98) (1,152.00)
194.35 160.23
0.05 0.47)
(258.20) (54.20)
(2,493.82) (490.23)
811.54 (382.08)
193.97 (21.81)
0.58 12.97
297.63 (153.07)
(1,931.70) (61.19)
(281.23) (27.31)
(2,212.93) (38.50)
(3,785.52) (208.88)
(2.07) (0.69)
118.49 188.51
(3,669.10) (21.06)
6,688.73 625.21

- 420.00

(1.80) (0.53)
(453.72) (451.20)
6,233.21 593.48
351.18 483.92
494 .42 10.50
845.60 494.42

...Continued on next page




Vanya Steels Private Limited

(CIN: U74999KA2005PTC125578)

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amount are in T Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

...Continued from previous page

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Notes to Statement of cash flows:

Components of cash and bank balances (refer note 13 and14) As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cash and cash equivalents 845.60 494.42
Other bank balances 29.52 28.51
Cash and bank balances at end of the year 875.12 522.93

Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities:

Particulars Non-current Current borrowings
borrowings *

For the year ended March 31, 2022

Balance as at April 1, 2021 2,873.15 1,868.12
Loan drawls (in cash)/interest accrued during the year 2,667.78 4,116.81
Adjustment for processing fee 2.93 =
Loan repayment/interest payment during the year (1,044.76) -

Other non-cash changes - -

Balance as at March 31, 2022 4,499.10 5,984.93

For the year ended March 31, 2021

Balance as at April 1, 2020 2,680.01 838.44
Loan drawls (in cash)/interest accrued during the year 2,256.87 1,029.68
Adjustment for processing fee (13.30) -
Loan repayment/interest payment during the year (1,720.75) -
Other non-cash changes (329.68) -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 2,873.15 1,868.12

There are no non-cash changes on account of effect of changes in foreign exchange rates and fair values.

* including current maturities

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared in accordance with the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Ind AS - 7 on "Cash
Flow Statements” specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The above statement of cash flows should be read in ¢ ion with the accompanying notes 3 to 71.

My s
— T A ,K\\
“For aﬁmﬁ@ half of the B/g@pff_mtg"ctpfs\of
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~
Sunil Jallan

Partner Director Director Company Secretary

Membership No.: 024534 DIN: 02150846 DIN: 02112630 M. No.: A52496

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: September 27, 2022 Date: September 27, 2022



96¥72SV “ON '
Aieyainag Auedwor)
efesebep eieg efoog

0€921120 :NIQ
S Topaia

2202 ‘L2 Jequiaydas @jeq
ninjebuag :ade|d

805120 ‘NId

10p8I1Qg
uejjef jung

o0

2202 ‘12 12quaydas :2yeq
ninjebuag :ade|q

PESY20 :'ON diysiaquiapy
Jaueq

1nybuis puey) yseyqns v>

ﬁuvwk uedwodde ay} yym uondnfuod ul peas aq pinoys Ayinba ui sabueyd jo Juswayeys aroqe ay |

N
¥8'528'€ oLoL s ¥8'280'2 08°'S0S'L 2202 ‘LE Y24e je se dduejeg
(6£°2) z (6£°2) = - - anoqe uo pedwi xe|
6V'6 % 6v'6 L 4 - awodul aAisuayaldwod 1Yo
STLLE'L % 3 3 = SZLLE'L 1eaf ay) Joj Jyoug
6V LYyS’L oLLze 00°€ 7 ¥8'280'2 (SY'LLY) 1202 "LE Y24 je se aduejeg
(L0°L) = (Lo'L) 5 - - anoqe uo yedwi xe|
Lo’y * L0V = - - awodul aaisuayasdwod 1By
€0°6VL'L % : = - €06VLL 1eak ayy 10§ Jy014
: : ey TR 1eaf bunsodai ayy jo
s R iR ¥ 7 e (8v029'L) Buiuuibaq ayy je aduejeq pajeysay
; 3 2 (€5 ®10N 1343)
ik s f A 2 (ee'vs) syuswgsnipe Sy puj 0} anp «ume_
aL'ozg 8V'€E0E % T 782802 (91'995'L) 0207 ‘L |udy je se aduejeg
snidins uonebijqo jyauaq pauyap | syuawniisul A3inba
|exoL uonenjenay 40 Juawainseaway 40 Juawainseaway wniwaad sbuiusea siejnonaed
awodul aAIsuaya4dwod 13y3o o sway| sanLNlag pauiejay
Ainba say30 ‘g
20°9LS'L 7202 ‘LE Y24e\ je se dduejeg
- 22-1202 buunp jeyided aseys Ajinba ui abuey
20°9LS’L 1202 ‘LE Yd4e je se aduejeg
» 12-0202 buunp |exded aieys Aynba ui sbuey)
20°9LS°L 0202 ‘L [1dy je se ad>uejeg

|eyided aleys Ayinb3 'y

(pa3e}s 3SIMIBYJO SSIJUN ‘SIBT 2 UI 318 JUNOWE /1)
2202 ‘LE Y24e\ papua seak ayy 104 A3inba ul sabueyd jo juswajeys

(8L552LI1dS00ZV)666¥LN *NID)
Pajiwir] ajenrlq s|a33s eAuep




Vanya Steels Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Reporting Entity

Vanya Steels Private Limited (the Company) is a private limited company domiciled in India, with its registered
office situated at A One House No. 326, Front Portion, First Floor, CQAL Layout, Ward No. 08, Sahakar Nagar,
Bangalore — 560092. The Company was incorporated on June 20, 2005. The Company is engaged in the business
of manufacturing and trading of Sponge Iron. The Company also undertakes machining and job works for its

customers.
1. Basis of preparation
(i) Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards:

These Ind AS financial statements (“the Financial Statements”) have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards ('Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA’) under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended
and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The Company's financial statements up to and including the year ended March 31, 2021 were prepared in
accordance with Indian GAAP, including accounting standards notified under the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) ("previous GAAP").

As these are Company'’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS), Ind AS 101, First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards has been applied. An explanation of how
the transition to Ind AS has affected the previously reported financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Company is provided in Note 53.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 were authorised and approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on September 27, 2022.

The significant accounting policies adopted for preparation and presentation of these financial statements are
included in Note 2. These policies have been applied consistently by the Company for all the periods presented
in these financial statements.

(ii) Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified and presented as current or non-current in accordance with the
Company's normal operating cycle other criteria set out in the Schedule Il to the Act.

(iii) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the Company’s functional currency.
All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lacs, unless otherwise indicated.




Vanya Steels Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(iv) Basis of measurement

(v)

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Basis of measurement
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value
Net defined benefit liability/asset Present value of defined benefit obligation less fair

value of plan asset

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related
disclosures. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Significant management judgements:

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an
assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised.

Business model assessment — The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups
of financial assets are managed together to achieve a business objective. This assessment includes judgement
reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance
measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers
of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are
derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are
consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company's
continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held
continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and
accordingly prospective change to the classification of those assets are made.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment
of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of
recoverable amount of the assets.

Classification of leases — Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period
of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease if the use of such option is reasonably
certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby
assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised.
In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements
undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the
underlying asset to the Company'’s operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the
availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term
reflects the current economic circumstances. After considering current and future economic conditions, the




Vanya Steels Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(i

Expected credit loss (ECL) - The measurement of expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured
at amortised cost requires use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions
and credit behaviour (e.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and resulting losses). The Company makes
significant judgements regarding the following while assessing expected credit loss:

= Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk

» Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of
product/market and the associated ECL

= Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.

Provisions — At each Balance Sheet date, based on the management judgment, changes in facts and legal
aspects, the Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities.
However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Significant estimates:

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of useful lives, residual
values, and method of depreciation of depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the
expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence
that may change the utility of assets.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) - Management's estimate of the DBO is based on several underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary
increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined
benefit expenses.

Fair value measurements - Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions
consistent with how market participants would price the instrument.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Revenue

The Company has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether,
how much and when revenue is to be recognized. The Standard requires apportioning revenue earned from

contracts to individual promises, or performance obligations, on a relative stand-alone selling price basis, using

a five-step model.
Revenue from sale of goods
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised product or services to customer in an amount that

reflect the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those product or services at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally the transaction price, net of any




Vanya Steels Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(ii)

(iii)

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria
is met:
a. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s
performance as the Company performs; or
b. The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or
c. The Company'’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and
an entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point
in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue from sale of products is recognised at a time on which the performance obligation is satisfied.
Recognition in case of local sales is generally recognised on the dispatch of goods. Revenue from export sales
is generally recognised on the basis of the dates of ‘On Board Bill of Lading’. The Company recognises provision
for sales return, based on the historical results, measured on net basis of the margin of the sale.

Other operating income

Export benefits are recognised in the year of export when right to receive the benefit is established and
conditions attached to the benefits are satisfied.

Other income
Interest income
Interest income on time deposits and inter corporate loans is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Employee Benefits
Short term employee benefits:

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expenses off as the

related services are provided. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and bonus etc. are recognised in the statement of

profit and loss in the year in which the employee renders the related service. The liabilities are presented as
current employee benefit obligation in the balance sheet.




Vanya Steels Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Defined contribution plan: Provident fund

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, which is a defined
contribution plan. Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributions to the plan at a
predetermined rate as per the provisions of The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,
1952. These contributions are made to the fund administered and managed by the Government of India. The
Company has no further obligations under the plan beyond its monthly contributions. Obligation for
contribution to defined contribution plan are recognised as an employee benefit expense in statement of profit
and loss in the period during which the related services are rendered by the employees.

Defined Benefit Plan: Gratuity
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

The Company provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity, which provides for lump sum payments
to vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on termination of employment in an amount
equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five
years of service. Benefits payable to eligible employees of the Company with respect to gratuity is accounted for
on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date.

The present value of such obligation is determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted for past
service cost and fair value of plan assets as at the balance sheet date through which the obligations are to be
settled. The resultant actuarial gain or loss on change in present value of the defined benefit obligation or change
in return of the plan assets is recognised as an income or expense in the other comprehensive income. The
Company’s obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair
value of any plan assets.

The Company determines the net interest expense/(income) on the net defined benefit liability/(asset) for the
period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability/(asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability/(asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense
and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates
to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of

a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.
Other long-term benefits: Compensated absences

Benefits under the Company’s compensated absences scheme constitute other employee benefits. The liability
in respect of compensated absences is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit
Credit Method done by an independent actuary as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gain and losses are
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit-anc




Vanya Steels Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(iv) Foreign exchange transactions and translations

(v)

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying the foreign currency amount
of exchange rate between the reporting currency and foreign currency at the date of transaction.

Conversion:

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities outstanding as at balance sheet date are restated/translated
using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities which are measured
in terms of historical cost denomination in foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of
transaction except for non-monetary item measured at fair value which are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when fair value is determined.

Exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary items or on restatement of the Company’s monetary
items at rates different from those at which they initially recorded during the year or reported in previous
financials statement (other than those relating to fixed assets and other long term monetary assets) are
recognised as income or expenses in the year in which they arise.

Tax expense

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to the
extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the
best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related
to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time
of the transaygtlon




Vanya Steels Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(vi)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit
may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax
asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence
that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax
assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the
extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Inventories

Raw materials, stores and spares, work-in-progress, manufactured finished goods and traded goods are valued
at lower of cost or net realisable value. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item by
item basis. Cost comprises of all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other cost incurred in bringing them
to their respective present location and condition. Cost is determined using first in, first out method of inventory
valuation.

Loose tools and scrap are valued at estimated realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Provision of obsolescence on inventories is considered on the basis of management’s estimate based on demand
and market of the inventories.

(vii) Cash and cash equivalents

(viii)

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, bank balances in current accounts and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to cash with original maturities of three months or less at the time of
purchase and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts

are shown within borrowings in current financial liabilities in the balance sheet.
Provisions, contingent liabilities, and contingent assets
Visi

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably
requires an outflow of resources, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

s liabil

confirmed b cc




Vanya Steels Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(ix)

control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are possible assets that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Company.

Property, plant and equipment (including Capital work-in-progress)
R iti I l

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Freehold land is carried
at cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost net of recoverable taxes (wherever
applicable), which includes capitalised borrowing costs less depreciation and impairment, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, if any, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of
bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing
the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company had elected to continue with carrying value of all its property, plant and
equipment recognised as at 1 April 2020 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the
deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period
in which they are incurred.
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Vanya Steels Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(x)

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods
are as under and the same are equal to lives specified as per schedule Il of the Act.

The useful lives of the assets are as under:

Particulars Useful lives (in years)
Tangible assets:

Land Not depreciable asset
Factory sheds and building 30 & 60 years
Plant and equipment 15 & 25 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Office equipments 3 & 5 years
Vehicles 8 & 10 years

Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives
as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets. Depreciation on
addition to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the assets are ready for
intended use. Depreciation on sale/discard from property, plant and equipment is provided for up to the date
of sale, deduction or discard of property, plant and equipment as the case may be.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and changes, if
any, are accounted for prospectively.

Leases
As lessee

The Company'’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to
direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12
months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company

recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be

exercised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(xi)

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less
any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e., the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-
use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using
the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with
a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have
been classified as financing cash flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in
respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any gooduwill allocated to the CGU, and then
to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

After impairment, depreciation/amortisation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life.
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(xii) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs
directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

(xiii)  Financial instruments
Initial recognition and measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue, except for an item recognised at fair value through profit and loss.
Transaction cost of financial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss is expensed in the statement of
profit and loss.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Fi ial
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at:
e amortised cost,
e Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), or
e Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the

Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated

as at FVTPL:
e the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and
e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at

FVTPL:
e the assetis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash

flows and selling financial assets; and

e the contractual terms of the financial 3s:
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Vanya Steels Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI - equity investment).
This election is made on an investment by investment basis.

All financial assets not classified to be measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured
at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI
or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

e the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management'’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

e how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

e the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

e how managers of the business are compensated - e.g., whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

e the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the assets

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value

basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and
costs (e.g., liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a
contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet
this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

e contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

e terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features; prepayment

and extension features; and
e terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g., non- recourse features).
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A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment
amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a
financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits
or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but
unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination)
is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial
recognition.

Financial e : ,

Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income and impairment
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in statement
of profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including
any interest income, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Debts investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the
effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On Derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as
income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at
FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense,
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the

statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and
only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the
financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the
modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and
the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:-
- Financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
- Financial assets measured at FVOCI- debt investments

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at FVOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit - impaired includes the following observable data:

e significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

e abreach of contract such as a default or being past due for agreed credit period;

e the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider

otherwise;
e it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
e the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Expected credit loss

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.
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12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument
is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual
period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than agreed
credit period.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

o the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the
Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
e the financial asset is past due and not recovered within agreed credit period.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e., the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount

of the assets disclosed in the Balance Sheet.
Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does
not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order

to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.
(xiv)Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted
i ch as bonus issue,
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For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted into equity shares as
at the beginning of the period unless they have been issued at a later date.

(xv) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company’s Management to allocate
resources to the segments and assess their performance.

Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most
relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these
industries. Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis.

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services. Further:

1. Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allocable to the segment
including inter-segment revenue.

2. Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for determining the
segment result. Expenses which relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments are
included under unallocable expenditure.

3. Income which relates to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in
unallocable income.

4. Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments.
Unallocable assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Company as a

whole and not allocable to any segment.

The Board of Director(s) are collectively the Company's ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker or ‘CODM’ within the
meaning of Ind AS 108. Refer Note 49 for segment information.
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Vanya Steels Private Limited

(CIN: U74999KA2005PTC125578)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amount are in Z Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

4

(0]

(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

Right-of-use assets

Office building

Opening balance

Additions on account of new lease contracts entered into during the year
Depreciation charged for the year

Closing balance

Capital work-in-progress

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

6.91 2
= 7.34
(1.47) (0.43)
5.44 6.91

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
April 1, 2020

Balance at the beginning 221.60 59.93 59.93
Addition during the year: 3,471.68 161.67 -

3,693.28 221.60 59.93
Capitalised during the year:
Plant and machinery 3,046.32 - -
Balance at the end 646.96 221.60 59.93
Footnote:
Capital work-in-progress ageing
Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Projects in progress
Less than 1 year 646.96 161.67 59.93
1-2 years & 59.93 -
646.96 221.60 59.93

Investments (non-current) As at As at As at

Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income:
A. Investment in equity instruments

Unquoted
Atria Wind Power (Bijapur 1) Private Limited
[21,568 equity shares of Z 100 each (March 31, 2021: 20,635; April 1, 2020: 20,322)]

Footnotes:
Carrying value and market value of quoted and unquoted investments are as below:

Book value of quoted investments
Market value of quoted investments
Book value of unquoted investments

For explanation on the Company's credit risk management process, refer note 50.

There are no significant restrictions on the right of ownership, realisability of investments or the remittance of income and proceeds of disposal.

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

April 1, 2020

47.71

45.70

45.01

47.77

45.70

45.01

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
April 1, 2020

47.77

45.70

45.01

The Company had invested in equity shares of Atria Wind Power (Bijapur 1) Private Limited for procurement of power towards captive consumption in Hospet unit.
The management anticipates that the termination of contract in future (if any) would be at cost i.e. the amount invested. The investment has been made only for
procuring the power and not for any financial benefit. The Company has classified investments at fair value through other comprehensive income. However,

considering the above facts, cost of investment has been considered as its fair value.

Other financial assets (non-current)

Unsecured, considered good - at amortised cost
Security deposits
Sales tax deposit

Footnote:

For explanation on the Company's credit risk management process, refer note 50.
P
: Or

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
April 1, 2020

158.91 44.58 44.58
0.10 0.10 0.10
159.01 44.68 44.68




Vanya Steels Private Limited

(CIN: U74999KA2005PTC125578)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amount are in ¥ Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

8 Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax assets (net) (refer note 52)

9 Non-current tax assets (net)

Income tax refundable (earlier years)

10 Other non-current assets

Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances
Prepaid expenses

11 Inventories
Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value
Raw materials
Stores and spares

Finished goods

Footnotes:

Inventories are pledged as securities for borrowings taken from banks (refer note 46).

12 Trade receivables
Unsecured - at amortised cost
Undisputed trade receivables — considered good
Undisputed trade receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk

Less: Impairment loss allowance

Footnotes:

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
2 - 174.98
B - 174.98
As at As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

April 1, 2020

46.00

46.00

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
April 1, 2020

15%:51 642.92 170.48
40.56 - -
192.07 642.92 170.48

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
April 1, 2020

6,315.98 1,843.42 1,579.10
274.50 242.52 286.33
586.77 1,071.33 139.84

7,177.25 3,157.27 2,005.27
As at As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

April 1, 2020

1,800.62 1,994.97 2,162.24
5.69 5.69 -

(180.37) (74.90) (67.83)

1,625.94 1,925.76 2,094.41

(i) The Company has measured expected credit loss of trade receivable as per Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments' (refer note 50).

(i) Trade receivables are pledged as securities for borrowings taken from banks (refer note 46).

(iii) For explanation on the Company's credit risk management process, refer note 50.

(iv) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are normally received in the Company's operating cycle.
(v) For trade receivables due from director or other officer of the Company and firms or private companies in which any director is a partner, a director or a member

either jointly or severally with other persons, refer outstanding balances mentioned in note 48.

(vi) Trade receivables ageing

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
April 1, 2020

Unsecured - at amortised cost

Undisputed trade receivables — considered good

0-6 months

6-12 months

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Undisputed trade receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk
2-3 years

More than 3 years

1,536.48 1,684.46 1,858.74
13.41 52.16 250.37
41.10 226.71 38.39

178.49 18.63 0.25
31.14 18.70 14.49

- 5.69 2

5.69 - -
1,806.31 2,006.35 2,162.24
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(CIN: U74999KA2005PTC125578)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amount are in ¥ Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

13

14

15

16

17

18

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
- in current accounts
Cash on hand

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
April 1, 2020

822.47 490.48 6.18
23.13 3.94 4.32
845.60 494.42 10.50
As at As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

April 1, 2020

Deposits with maturity more than three months but less than twelve months

Footnote:

29.52

28.51

27.45

29.52

28.51

27.45

Above balances are held with bank as security in relation to repayment of borrowings (refer note 46).

Loans (current)
Unsecured, considered good
Loans to

-Employees

Footnote:

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
April 1, 2020

1.08

113

0.66

1.08

1.13

0.66

For explanation on the Company's credit risk management process, refer note 50.

Other financial assets (current)

Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits

Earnest money deposits

Accrued interest on fixed deposits

Footnote:

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
April 1, 2020

432 3.84 4.01
335.35 191.67 137.92
2.56 2.85 223
342.23 198.36 144.16

For explanation on the Company's credit risk management process, refer note 50.

Current tax assets (net)

Current tax asset (net)

Other current assets

Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid expenses

Advance to suppliers

Balance with government authorities

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
April 1, 2020

- 46.00 43.84
3 46.00 43.84
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020

42.05 14.54 10.69

3,219.62 291.24 247.72

52.66 63.88 93.46

3,314.33 369.66 351.87

...Space intentionally left blank...
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19 Equity share capital

(i). The Company has only one class of share capital having a par value of Z 100 per share, referred to herein as equity shares.

Authorised shares
Equity shares
1,60,00,000 (March 31, 2021 1,60,00,000; April 1, 2020 1,60,00,000) shares of 10 each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
Equity shares
1,51,60,167 (March 31, 2021 1,51,60,167; April 1, 2020 1,51,60,167) shares of Z 10 each

(ii). Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
April 1, 2020

Equity shares

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year
Shares issued during the year

Shares outstanding at the end of the year

1,600.00 1,600.00 1,600.00
1,600.00 1,600.00 1,600.00
1,516.02 1,516.02 1,516.02
1,516.02 1,516.02 1,516.02
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Number Amount Number Amount
1,51,60,167 1,516.02 1,51,60,167 1,516.02
1,51,60,167 1,516.02 1,51,60,167 1,516.02

(iii). Terms/rights attached to equity shares
Voting

Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share held.

Dividend

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in ensuing

Annual General Meeting except in the case where interim dividend is distributed. The Company has not distributed any dividend in the current and previous year.

iquidati

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the shareholders shall be entitled to receive all of the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential

amounts, if any. Such distribution amounts will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(iv). Equity shares held by holding company

Name of shareholders As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Number Percentage Number Percentage Number Percentage
A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited 1,51,60,166 100.00% 1,51,60,166 100.00% 1,51,60,166 100.00%
(v). Detail of shareholders holding more than 5% of equity share of the Company
Name of shareholders As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Number Percentage Numb Per g Number Percentage
A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited 1,51,60,166 100.00% 1,51,60,166 100.00% 1,51,60,166 100.00%

(vi). No class of shares have been allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash, allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares

or bought back during the period of 5 years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date.

(vii). Details of equity shares held by Promoters at the end of year

Name of promoters As at % As at
March 31, 2022 change March 31, 2021
Number Percentage Number Percentage
A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited 1,51,60,166 100.00% 0.00% 1,51,60,166 100.00%
Sandeep Kumar 1 0.00% 0.00% 1 0.00%
~ 1,51,60,167 100% 0% 1,51,60,167 100%
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Name of promoters

As at % As at
March 31, 2021 change April 1, 2020
Number Percentage Number Percentage
A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited 1,51,60,166 100.00% 0.00% 1,51,60,166 100.00%
Sandeep Kumar 1 0.00% 0.00% 1 0.00%
1,51,60,167 100% 0% 1,51,60,167 100%
(viii). No shares are reserved to be issued under options and contracts/ commitments for the sale of shares/ disinvestment.
20 Other equity As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
(i). Retained earnings
Opening balance (471.45) (1,620.48) (1,566.16)
Add/Less: Impact due to Ind AS adjustments - - (54.32)
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year 1,977.25 1,149.03 -
Closing balance 1,505.80 (471.45) (1,620.48)
(ii). Securities premium
Opening balance 2,082.84 2,082.84 2,082.84
Closing balance 2,082.84 2,082.84 2,082.84
(iii). ltems of other comprehensive income
Opening balance 230.10 227.10 30348
Add/Less: Impact due to Ind AS adjustments - - (76.38)
Add: Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 7.10 3.00 -
Closing balance 237.20 230.10 227.10
3,825.84 1,841.49 689.46

Nature and purpose of other equity:

(i). Retained earnings

Retained earnings represents the surplus/ (deficit) in profit and loss account and appropriations.

(ii). Securities premium

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium. It can only be utilised for limited purposes in accordance with the

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
(iii). ltems of other comprehensive income

R t of equity instruments

The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in other comprehensive income. These changes are

accumulated in the FVOCI equity investments reserve. The Company transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earning

derecognised or sold. Any impairment loss on such instruments is reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation

s when the relevant equity securities are

The Company recognises change on account of remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability as part of other comprehensive income with separate disclosure,

which comprises of:
« actuarial gains and losses;

« return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability; and
« any change in the effect of the asset ceiling excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability.

Revaluation surplus
The Company recognises increase in carrying amount as a result of a revaluation in other comprehensive income. The Company transfers amount of revaluation surplus

directly to retained earnings when the asset is derecognised.
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21

22

23

24

25

26

27

Borrowings (non-current)

Secured - at amortised cost
Term loans:
- from banks (refer note 46)
Less: Current maturities

Vehicle loans:
- from banks (refer note 46)
Less: Current maturities

Unsecured - at amortised cost
From related parties (refer note 48 and note 46)
From others (refer note 46)
Privately placed non-cumulative redeemable preference shares

Footnote:
For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 50.

Lease liabilities (non-current)

Lease liabilities (refer note 47 and 48)

Footnote:
For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 50.

Provisions (non-current)

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 45)
Provision for compensated absences

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Deferred tax liabilities (net) (refer note 52)

Other non-current liabilities

Deferred fair value gain on account of preference shares
Deferred fair value gain on account of unsecured loans
Othe long-term liabilities

Borrowings (current)

Secured - at amortised cost
Working capital demand loans from banks (refer note 46)
Cash credit from banks (refer note 46)
Current maturities of non-current borrowings (refer note 21)

Footnote:
For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 50.

Lease liabilities (current)

Lease liabilities (refer note 47 and 48)

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
4,071.39 2,246.92 1,332.96
(915.78) (324.70) (162.64)
44.10 14.27 8.04
(9.62) (3.12) (1.93)
116.02 107.94 339.52
- 266.68 908.79
267.59 237.34 90.70
3,573.70 2,545.33 2,515.44
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
4.36 5.74 =
4.36 5.74 o
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
18.01 18.69 12.75
9.02 7:59 6.67
27.03 26.28 19.42
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
206.32 188.90 -
206.32 188.90 -
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
404.52 452.13 188.25
28.43 70.72 187.78
1,135.02 99.15 423.58
1,567.97 622.00 799.61
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
1,000.00 2 =
4,984.93 1,868.12 838.44
925.40 327.82 164.57
6,910.33 2,195.94 1,003.01
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
1.37 1.26 -
1.37 1.26 -

Footnote:

For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 50.
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27

28

(i)
(ii)

29

30

31

32

Lease liabilities (current) As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Lease liabilities (refer note 47 and 48) 1.37 1.26 -
1.37 1.26 -
Footnote:

For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 50.

As at
March 31, 2022

Trade payables

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
April 1, 2020

Trade payables due:

- to micro and small enterprises 45.44 1237 3.26
- to others 2,006.70 1,228.23 1,619.42
2,052.14 1,240.60 1,622.68
Footnotes:
For disclosures relating to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 refer note 44.
For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 50.
(iii) Trade payables ageing
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Dues of micro and small enterprises
Less than 1 year 36.17 12.26 3.26
1-2 years 9.27 0.11 -
Dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
Less than 1 year 2,002.49 1,190.86 1,598.06
1-2 years 1.95 18.37 21.36
2-3 years 2.02 19.00 -
More than 3 years 0.24 - -
2,052.14 1,240.60 1,622.68
Other financial liabilities (current) As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Payable for capital goods 146.25 - 3.67
Payable for investment 2.07 - -
Employees related payable 21.14 16.65 18.40
Audit fees payable 4.00 2.00 0.93
Expenses payable 73.56 54.40 71.86
247.02 73.05 94.86
Footnote:
For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 50.
Other current liabilities As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Advance from customers 353.20 73.01 395.60
Statutory dues payable 286.65 273.25 135.85
Contract liability as per Ind AS 115 36.16 32.12 -
676.01 378.38 531.45
Provisions (current) As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 45) 0.44 0.08 0.03
Provision for compensated absences 0.21 0.20 0.15
Provision for bonus 12.15 12.69 6.68
12.80 12.97 6.86
Current tax liabilities (net) As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Current tax liabilities (net) 380.51 - -

380.51
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33 Revenue from operations

Sale of products
Manufacturing goods
Trading goods

Information required as per Ind AS 115:

Disaggregated revenue information as per geographical markets
Revenue from customers based in India
Revenue from customers based outside India

Timing of revenue recognition
Transferred at a point in time
Transferred over time

Trade receivables and contract assets/(liabilities)
Trade receivables
Contract liabilities

Changes in contract liability are as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year

Recognised and deducted from revenue during the year
Utilised and adjusted from actual expense during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Performance obligation and remaining performance obligation

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

35, 715:71 19,069.13
19,762.11 12,682.20
55,477.88 31,751.33
For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

55,477.88

55,477.88

1,625.94
(36.16)

31,751.33

31,751.33

1,925.76
(32.12)

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

32.12 -
36.16 32.12
32:12 =
36.16 32.12

There are no remaining performance obligations for the year ended March 31, 2022, as the same is satisfied upon delivery of

goods/services.

34 Other income

Interest income (refer note 48)
- on fixed deposits
- on security deposits
- on security deposits using EIR method
- on late payment from customers
- on deferred fair value gain of preference shares
- on deferred fair value gain of unsecured loans
- on others
Foreign exchange fluctuation gain
Miscellaneous income

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

1.06 1.15

2.56 449
345 -
9.91 =

4761 23.77

4228 159.10
11.62 -

- 1.72
1.40 =

119.89 190.23

...Space intentionally left blank...
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35 Cost of materials consumed

Opening stock of raw material

Add: Purchases

Add: Freight, transportation and loading charges

Add: Import expenses and high sea purchase expenses
Add: Royalty expenses

Add: Compensation cess

Less: Closing stock of raw material

36 Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade, finished goods and work-in-progress

Opening stock
Closing stock

37 Employee benefit expenses

Salary, wages, bonus and allowances

Employers' contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 45)
Expenses related to post employment defined benefit plans (Refer note 45)
Expenses related to compensated absences (Refer note 45)

Staff and labour welfare expenses

38 Finance costs

Interest expenses
- on borrowings
- on preference shares
- on lease liabilities (refer note 47)
- on late payment of statutory dues
Other borrowing costs

Less: Borrowing costs capitalised during the year (refer note 5)

39 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (refer note 4)

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

2,162.54 1,71894
48,153.03 25,264.09
3,859.80 2,393.69
468.84 51572
1,454.45 1,023.09
493.00 407.30
(6,590.48) (2,162.54)
50,001.18 29,160.29
For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

994.73 286.33

(586.77) (994.73)

407.96 (708.40)

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

306.83 243.05
18.48 16.13
9.17 9.99
2.05 1.38
2033 9.91
356.86 280.46
For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

502.35 417.08
30.25 14.30
0.54 0.19
- 2.65
49.07 1717
(127.95) -
454.26 451.39
For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

256.97 207.74
1.47 043
258.44 208.17
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40 Other expenses

Power, fuel and diesel

Village welfare and development expenses
Freight and forwarding (net)

Commission expenses

Testing and inspection charges

Security charges

Rent and hire charges (refer note 48)
Insurance

Rates and taxes

Travelling and conveyance

Legal and professional expenses (refer footnote)

Charity and donations
CSR expenses (refer note 43)
Repairs and maintenance expenses

Impairment of trade receivables (refer note 50)

Foreign exchange fluctuation loss
Miscellaneous expenses

Footnote:

Payment of remuneration to auditors (excluding GST)

- as auditor
« for statutory audit
« for tax audit

41 Earning per share

(a). Basic and diluted earnings per share

From continuing operations attributable to the equity holders of the Company

(b). Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Profit from continuing operation attributable to the equity share holders
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating

basic and diluted earnings per share

(¢). Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating

basic and diluted earnings per share

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

781.54 696.29
38.27 37.77
55.94 4
46.53 59.83

7.97 6.70
30.64 36.90

148.33 60.81
18.89 12.76
16.39 12.21
11.46 3.57
29.15 11.62

797 7.66
27.37 9.12

115.39 36.61

105.47 8.42
11.49 -
12.25 12.33

1,465.05 1,012.60
For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

1.50 1.50
0.50 0.50
2.00 2.00
For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

13.04 7.58
1:971:25 1,149.03
1,977.25 1,149.03
1,51,60,167 1,51,60,167

The Company has not issued any instrument that is potentially dilutive in the future. Hence, the weighted average number of
shares outstanding at the end of the year for calculation of basic as well as diluted EPS is the same.
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42

(i

b=

43

44

Contingent liabilities and commitments As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020

Income Tax matters (refer footnote i) 229.31

Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not 26.38 - -
provided for (net of capital advances of 2 151.51 Lacs (March 31, 2021: ¥ 642.92

Lacs and April 1, 2020 ¥ 170.48 Lacs).

Footnotes:

Contingent liability with respect to Income Tax matters is for search action conducted under Section 132 of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Expenditure on CSR activities

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to spend, in every financial year, at least two per cent of average net profits of
the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years in accordance with its CSR Policy in respect of activities specified in Schedule
VIl of te Companies Act, 2013. The details of CSR expenses for the year are as under:

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Amount required to be spent during the year 17.95 8.31
Shortfall/ (Excess) amount of previous year 0.81) -
Total 17.14 8.31
Amount spent during the year on

- construction/acquisition of any property, plant and equipment

- purposes other than above 271.37 9.12
Total 27.37 9.12
Shortfall/ (Excess) amount carried forward to next year (10.23) (0.81)
Footnote:
Nature of CSR activities

The amount has been spent on various activities mentioned in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013.

In terms of Section 22 of Chapter V of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006), the disclosures of
payments due to any supplier are as follows:

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any
MSME supplier as at the end of each accounting year included in:
- Trade payables 45.44 12.37 3.26
- Other financial liabilities - - -
- Interest due on above - - -
45.44 12.37 3.26

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED - - -
Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond
the appointed day during each accounting year.

The amounts of the payments made to micro and small suppliers beyond the - - -
appointed day during each accounting period.

...Continued on next page
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45

The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment - - -
(which have been paid but beyond the appointment day during the year) but
without adding the Interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each - = -
accounting year.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the - - -
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually

paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible

under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006.

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans:

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards provident
fund and labour welfare fund which are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss as they accrue.

The Company has recognised, in the Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022 an amount of  13.72 Lacs, March 31, 2021:  11.76
Lacs under defined contribution plans.

Expense under defined contribution plans include: For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Employer's contribution to provident fund 13.72 11.76
13.72 11.76
Defined benefit plans:
Gratuity

The Company operates a post-employment defined benefit plan for Gratuity. This plan entitles an employee to receive half month's salary for each year
of completed service at the time of retirement/exit.

The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, which recognise each period of service
as giving rise to additional employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out as at March 31,
2022 and March 31, 2021. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured

using the projected unit credit method.

Net defined benefit liability/(asset) As at As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Present value of obligations 18.45 18.77 12.78
Fair value of plan assets - - -
Total employee benefit liabilities/(assets) 18.45 18.77 12.78
Non-current 18.01 18.69 12.75
Current 0.44 0.08 0.03

...Continued on next page
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B. Reconciliation of the net defined benefit liability

Balance at the beginning of the year
Included in profit or loss

Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest cost/(income)

Expected return on plan assets

Included in OCI

Remeasurements loss (gain)

— Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
- financial assumptions

- demographic assumptions

- experience adjustment

Return on plan assets excluding interest income

Other
Contributions paid by the employer
Benefits paid

Balance at the end of the year

Balance at the beginning of the year
Included in profit or loss

Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest cost/(income)

Expected return on plan assets

Included in OCI

Remeasurements loss (gain)

- Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
- financial assumptions
- demographic assumptions
- experience adjustment

Return on plan assets excluding interest income

Other
Contributions paid by the employer
Benefits paid

Balance at the end of the year

As at March 31, 2022

Defined benefit Fair value of Net defined benefit
obligation plan assets (asset)/ liability

18.77 - 2 ABI7

7.88 - 7.88

1-.28 : 1-.28

9?1 7 : 9:1 7

(0.98) e (0.98)

(8:50) : (8.-50)

o : 5

18.45 - 18.45

As at March 31, 2021

Defined benefit Fair value of Net defined benefit
obligation plan assets (asset)/ liability

12.78 - 12.78

9.12 - 9.12

0_.87 : O-.87

555 : X

0.51 - 0.51

(4.-5 1) : (4.-51 )

(4.;)1) : (4.;)1)

18.77 - 18.77

...Continued on next page
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Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current service cost 7.88 5 9.12

Past service cost =
Net interest cost 1.28 0.87

Expected return on plan assets

C. Plan assets
The plan assets of the Company are managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India through a trust managed by the Company in terms of an
insurance policy taken to fund obligations of the Company with respect to its gratuity plan.

Plan assets comprises of the following: March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020

Total plan assets = z b
Funds managed by insurer - < 5
% of Plan assets 0% 0% 0%

An asset-liability matching study is done by the Company on an annual basis, whereby the Company contributes the net increase in the actuarial liability
to the plan manager in order to manage the liability risk.

D. Actuarial assumptions
The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upon the market yields available on government bonds
at the accounting date with a term that matches that of liabilities. Salary increase rate takes into account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors on long term basis. Valuation assumptions are as follows which have been selected by the Company.

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Discount rate 7.30% 6.85% 6.85%
Expected rate of future salary increase 10% for the first three  10% for the first three  10% for the first three
years and 7% years and 7% years and 7%
thereafter thereafter thereafter
Expected rate of attrition 1% - 3% 1% - 3% 1% - 3%
Mortality IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14

E. Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have
affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1.00% movement) (2.85) 355 (3.09) 3.88
Future salary growth (1.00% movement) 3.50 (2.87) 382 (3.10)
Attrition rate (50.00% of attrition rate movement) (0.23) 0.22 (0.45) 047

Mortality Rate (10.00% of mortality rate movement) - - - -
Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the
sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

Sensitivities due to mortality is not material and hence impact of change is not calculated.

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not
applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

...Continued on next page
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Description of Risk Exposures:

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such the Company is exposed to various risks as follows:
a). Salary increase: Actual salary increases will increase plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase
the liability.

b). Investment risk: If plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the
last valuation date can impact the liability.

c). Discount rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.
d). Mortality & disability: Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.

e). Withdrawals: Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can
impact the plan’s liability.

F. Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years

Duration of defined benefit obligation As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Less than 1 year 0.44 0.08
Between 2-5 years 2.21 1.84
Between 6-10 years 2.56 3
Over 10 years 75.34 75.36
Total 80.54 80.40

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at March 31, 2022 is 18 years (March 31, 2021: 19 years).

...Space intentionally left blank...
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47

A.

1.

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Leases

Leases as a lessee

Non-exempted leases

Movement in lease liabilities

Opening balance

Additions on account of new lease contracts entered into during the year
Finance cost accrued during the year

Payment of lease liabilities*
Closing balance

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
7.00 -
- 734
0.54 0.19
(1.80) (0.53)
5.74 7.00

*Payment of lease liabilities includes payment of principal of lease liabilities amounting of ¥ 1.26 Lacs (previous year: ¥ 0.37 Lacs) and interest of

lease liabilities amounting of ¥ 0.54 Lacs (previous year: Z 0.16 Lacs).

Break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities

Current lease liabilities
Non-current lease liabilities

Maturity analysis of lease liabilities

The details of contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at year end on undiscounted basis are as follows:

Commitments for lease payments in relation to non-exempted leases are
payable as follows:

- not later than one year

- later than one year and not later than five years

- later than five years

Commitments for lease payments in relation to non-exempted leases are
payable as follows:

- not later than one year

- later than one year and not later than five years

- later than five years

Amount recoginised in the statement of profit and loss

Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Finance costs on lease liabilities

Amount recoginised in statement of cash flows

Cash flow from financing activities
Payment of lease liabilities

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
1.37 1.26 -
437 574 -
5.74 7.00 -
As at March 31, 2022

Lease payments

Finance charges

Net present value

1.80 043 137
488 0.51 436
6.68 0.94 5.74

As at March 31, 2021

Lease payments

Finance charges

Net present value

1.80 0.54 1.26
6.68 0.94 5.74
8.48 1.48 7.00
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
147 043
0.54 0.19
2.01 0.62
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1.80 0.53
1.80 0.53

For reconciliation of carrying amount of right-of-use assets and details thereof refer note 4.

Exempted leases

The Company has recognised ¥ 5.28 Lacs as rent expenses during the year (previous year Z 7.20 Lacs) which pertains to short term lease/ low value
asset which.was nét?d@éb\ed as part of right of/gse—asset\
7 i Yoo\

v, Pri

N

r —
o X




Vanya Steels Private Limited

(CIN: U74999KA2005PTC125578)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
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48 Related party disclosures

The related parties as per terms of Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures", specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are disclosed below:

A. List of related parties where control exists and/or with whom transactions have taken place

Nature of relationship Name of related party
Holding company A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited
Fellow subsidiary company A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited

A-One Gold Steels India Private Limited

Enterprises in which person, who exercise control over the A One Steels India Private Limited
Company, have significant influence or control or islare ~ Aaryan Hitech Steels India Private Limited

KMP Ambe Metals
Key Management Personnel (KMP) Sunil Jallan Director
Sandeep Kumar Director
Mahesh Kumar Director (w.e.f. November 16, 2021)

Pooja Sara Nagaraja Company Secretary

Relatives of KMPs Priya Jallan Wife of Director

B. Transactions with related parties during the year are as following: -

Name of Related Party and Nature of Transactions For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Sale of goods

A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited 11,498.28 6,235.22

A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited 4.22 -

A One Steels India Private Limited 4,033.34 2,719.61
Purchase of goods

A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited 13,736.74 10,733.94

A One Steels India Private Limited 281.88 95.58
Purchase of property, plant & equipment

A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited 66.76 9.32

A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited 0.54 -
Transportation and handling charges

A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited 54.28 4
Short term employee benefits

Pooja Sara Nagaraja 1.20 1.10
Employee benefits paid

Pooja Sara Nagaraja 1.20 1.10
Borrowings taken

Sandeep Kumar 8.00 -

Sunil Jallan 4.00 -

Priya Jallan 0.55 -

Ambe Metals - -

Borrowings repaid

Sandeep Kumar 8.67 1.10
Sunil Jallan 3.97 -
Priya Jallan 0.55 -
Ambe Metals - 267.75

Interest on loans

Sandeep Kumar 4.31 3.99
Sunil Jallan 4.41 4.08
Ambe Metals - 29.19

...Continued on next page
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Interest on lease liabilities

A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited 0.54 0.19
Payment of lease liabilities

A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited 1.80 0.53
Corporate guarantee taken

A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited 5,000.00 3,100.00
Personal guarantee taken

Sandeep Kumar 5,000.00 3,100.00

Sunil Jallan 5,000.00 3,100.00

C. Balance outstanding with or from related parties as at:
Name of Related Party and Nature of Balances As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020

Trade receivables

A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited 430.94 404.76 304.28

A One Steels India Private Limited - 270.60 -

A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited 45.40 - -

A-One Gold Steels India Private Limited 5.59 - -
Advance from customers

A One Steels India Private Limited 60.80 - 305.69
Borrowings

Ambe Metals - - 238.56

Sandeep Kumar 56.46 52.82 49.92

Sunil Jallan 59.57 §5.13 51.04
Lease liabiliies

A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited 5.74 7.00 -
Corporate guarantee taken

A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited 10,600.00 5,600.00 2,500.00
Personal guarantee taken

Sandeep Kumar 10,600.00 5,600.00 2,500.00

Sunil Jallan 10,600.00 5,600.00 2,500.00

D. Terms and Conditions

(i) Sale and purchase of goods and property, plant & equipment are done at arm's length price.

(ii) No guarantee fees have been paid for corporate guarantee and personal guarantee taken from holding company and KMPs respectively.

(iii) For terms and conditions of leases, refer note 47.

...Space intentionally left blank...
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49 Operating segments

A.

0]

Basis for Segmentation

Segment information is presented in respect of the Company's key operating segments. The operating segments are based on the Company's
management and internal reporting structure. The chief operating decision maker identifies primary segments based on the dominant source,
nature of risks and returns and the internal organisation and management structure. The operating segments are the segments for which separate
financial information is available and for which operating profit/loss amounts are evaluated regularly. All operating segments’ operating results are
reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance.

The 'Board of Directors' have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘CODM"), since they are responsible for all major decision w.r.t.
the preparation and execution of business plan, preparation of budget, planning, expansion, alliance, joint venture, merger and acquisition, and
expansion of any facility.

The Board of Directors examines the Company’s performance from business activities perspective and have identified the following reportable
segments of its business:

Reportable segments Operations
Manufacturing Sponge Iron
Trading Sponge Iron

Information about reportable segments

Segment assets, segment liabilities and Segment profit and loss are measured in the same way as in the financial statements.

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is measured based on segment profit (before tax), as
included in the internal management reports that are reviewed by the Company's Board of Directors. Segment profit is used to measure
performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other
entities that operate within these industries. Inter-segment pricing, if any, is determined on an arm's length basis.

For the year ended March 31, 2022 Reportable Segments

Manufacturing Trading Total
Segment revenue - revenue from external customers 35,719.81 19,762.11 55,481.93
Segment results 4,040.69 246.51 4,287.20
Segment assets 16,374.89 - 16,374.89
Segment liabilities 2,271.95 - 2,271.95
For the year ended March 31, 2021 Reportable Segments

Manufacturing Trading Total
Segment revenue - revenue from external customers 19,069.13 12,682.20 31,751.33
Segment results 2,410.14 193.01 2,603.15
Segment assets 9,464.18 - 9,464.18
Segment liabilities 1,295.00 - 1,295.00

Reconciliations of information on reportable segments

Revenues For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Total revenue for reportable segments
Manufacturing 35:719.81 19,069.13
Trading 19,762.11 12,682.20
55,481.93 31,751.33

on next page
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(ii) Total comprehensive income

Total profit before tax for reportable segments
Manufacturing
Trading

Other income

Unallocated expenses:

Finance costs

Employee benefit expense
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax
Less: Exceptional items

Profit/(Loss) before tax

Tax expenses

Profit/(Loss) after tax

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of equity instruments
- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans
- Income tax relating to these items

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
(iii) Assets

Total assets for reportable segments
Manufacturing

Trading

Unallocated assets

Investments

Deferred tax assets (net)

Non-current tax assets (net)

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Loans

Other financial assets (current)

Current tax assets (net)

Other current assets

Total assets

For the year ended

March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

4,040.69 2,410.14
246.51 193.01
4,287.20 2,603.15
119.89 190.23
454.26 451.39
356.86 280.46
258.44 208.17
683.51 316.31
2,654.02 1,537.05
2,654.02 1,537.05
676.77 388.02
1,977.25 1,149.03
9.49 4.01
(2.39) (1.01)
1,984.35 1,152.03
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020

16,374.89 9,464.18 8,000.34
47.77 45.70 45.01
i = 174.98

46.00 - -
845.60 494.42 10.50
29.52 2851 27.45
1.08 1.13 0.66
34223 198.36 144.16
- 46.00 43.84
3,314.33 369.66 351.87

21,001.42

10,647.96 8,798.81

...Continued on next page
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(iv) Liabilities As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Total liabilities for reportable segments
Manufacturing 2,271.95 1,295.00 1,698.21
Trading = = B
Unallocated liabilities
Borrowings (non-current) 3,573.70 2,545.33 2,515.44
Lease liabilities (non-current) 4.36 5.74 -
Provisions (non-current) 27.03 26.28 19.42
Deferred tax liabilities 206.32 188.90 -
Other non-current liabilities 1,567.97 622.00 799.61
Borrowings (current) 6,910.33 2,195.94 1,003.01
Lease liabilities (current) 137 1.26 -
Other financial liabilities (current) 27.21 18.65 19.33
Other current liabilities 676.01 378.38 53145
Provisions (current) 12.80 12.97 6.86
Current tax liabilities (net) 380.51 - -
15,659.56 7,290.45 6,593.33
D. Geographic information
(i) Revenues from different geographies For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Within India 55,477.88 31,751.33
Outside India - -
55,477.88 31,751.33
(ii) Non-current assets* As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Within India 7,458.69 4,336.47 3,855.98
Outside India = - &
7,458.69 4,336.47 3,855.98
*Non-current assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets, post-employment benefit assets
E. Major customer
Revenue from transactions with external customer amounting to 10 per cent or more of the Company's revenue is as follows:
Customer name Amount
For the year ended March 31, 2022
A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited 11,498.28
11,498.28
For the year ended March 31, 2021
A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited 6,235.22
6,235.22
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abed yxau uo panunuo)

3 B 26'88L'CL 26'88L'TL = |eiol
% % 20'Lv2 20'Lye = sal}l|Iqel| [edURULY JBYIO
i 7 712502 712502 = sa|qeked apes|
£ & LEL LEL T sanjl|iqel| asea
x 3 £€0L6'9 €€0L6'9 v sbuimo.log
juauny
i Z 9t 9tV = sall|iqel| asea
- 7 OL'ELS'E 0L€LS'E = sbuimo.iog
Juaiind-uonN
sanjiqel| jelueuly
LL'LY % SL'LSO'E 8€'€00'€ LL’LY 1elo0L
P 3 [ X443 (443 = S}asse |epueUl JIBYIO
i T 80°L 80°L - sueon
& i3 2562 25'6¢ = s@dueleq yueq Jayi0
2 @ 09'Sv8 09'S¥8 & sjuajeAinba ysed pue yse)
% 5 ¥6'529'L 76'529°L = sa|qeAl@dal apel|
juaun)
5 B LO'6GL LO'6SL 5 s}asse |epueUl 1BYI0
LLLY = LLLY 7 LLLY SJUSLL)SAAU|
JuUa4iNd-uoN
sjasse |eldueuly
i [4 i L 2797 1®¥oL 350> pasijiowy 1DO1AN4 .
Buisn juawainseaw anjeA Jie4 TTOT LE YIEIN 38 sV

‘AyaJeIaly dnjeA Jiey Y} Ul S|9A3] 19y} Buipnpul ‘sanijiqel| [eIdUBUL puUE S}asSe [eDUBUL JO 3N[eA Jiej pue sjunowe buikied ayy smoys a|qe} buimoyjoy ay |

Aydaeaary sanjen Jiey pue Liobajed Aq - spuawinaysul jedueuly *(e
SJUSWINJISUI [EIDUBUL} PUE JUBWIAINSE3W dnjeA died (S

(Pa3€)S ISIMIBYIO SSIIUN ‘SIET 2 Ul B8 JUNOWE [[\7)

2202 ‘L€ Yd1e\l papus Jeak ay} 10 spuawiaje)s [eldueuly 3y} O} S3}0N
(8LSSZLDLAS00ZVYN666VLN :NID)

pajiwi 3jeAlld s]2935 eAuep



abed jxau uo panunuoy

= 5 26°L90°9 26°L90°9 3 lelol
7 % SO'EL SO'EL 7 sai}i|iqel| [edURUL JBYI0
i 7 090t2'L 090v2'L 7 sa|qeked apei|
% 3 9L 921 = sanljiqel| asea
§ ¥ 76'S61'C 76'561'C E sbuimo.log
juaLIn)
2 7 vL'S VLS = sanl|iqel| asea
¥ 7 £€°5¥S2 €€°9YS'2 5 sbuimo.log
JU34INd-UoN
soniqeijjeatienal)
0L'Ssy T 95'8€L'T 98'269'C 0L'SY 1eoL
i B 9€'861 9€'861L 7 S}asse |eduRUL JBYIO
T i ELL gkl 3 sueo
% i LS8¢ 1582 = saoue|eq yueq I3y
7 & A4 ey 5 sjuajeainba ysed pue yse)
: 3 9,'526'L 9/'526'L ? $3|qeAI®DD) dpel]
juaIn)
B 5 891y 89vY T s}@sse [eduRUL JBYI0
0L'sy 5 0L'SY - 0L'SY S)USWIISOAU|
JU34INd-uoN
s}asse |edueuly
€ [9A97] (4] L [9ne] |e10) 3503 paspiowy 1DOLNA g
Buisn juawainseaw anjea iie4 L20T 'LE Y21\ 3ESY

abed snomaid woly panupuo)

(Po}e)s asIMIBY)O SS8/UN ‘SOPT 3 Ul 818 Junowe JI\7)
2202 ‘LE Y21e\ papua Jeak ay) 104 sjuswale)s [eldueuly Y3 0} S3}0N

(8£55ZLD1dS00ZV)666VLN :NID)
pajiwi 3jeAld s|a3is eAuep



abed jxau uo panunpuo)y

T T 66'SET’'S 66°SE2’'S - |elol
G 7 9816 98176 E sonljigel] [EDUEUIL 1O
% o 89229'L 89229'L = sa|qefed apel|
4 v & % 5 seil|iqel) ased]
i 3 LO'€00°L LO'€00°L - sbuimoulog
juaLIN)
. 5 3 i 0 SOIH|IgRI] Oseer)
¢ E vy'SLSC vr'SLSC i sbuimo.log
JUa44Nd-UoN
sonjiqer] jelaueaiy
LO'SY 7 L899¢€'C 98'LZE'2 LO'SY 8101
§ i 9LvYL 9L VPl = S}asse |enueul} JBYI0
% i 990 990 3 sueo
i i Sy'L2 Sy'Le = s@due|eq yueq JaYyi0
% B 050L 050l = sjusjeAinba ysed pue yse)
i 7 Ly'¥60°2 L7602 = s3|qeAladal apel|
juaLIN)
i 7 891y 89'vv = s}@sse [eduRUL JIBYIO
LO'SY 3 LO'SY 5 LO'SY SJUBWISIAU|
JU344Nd-UoN
sjasse |eldueuly
€ [PAaT Z |ena L [9ne lexol1 350> pasnpiowy 1DO1IAA T
Buisn jusawdnseaw anjea Jaie4 0207 'L |MCV i€ sV

abed snoima.id wou panunuo)

(po2B)S 35IMIBYIO SS8JUN ‘SO 2 Ul 8J8 JUNOWE [[17)
2202 ‘L€ Ya4e|\ papus aeak ay) 404 sjuswaje)s [eidueuly 3y} 0} S330N

(8L5SZLDLAS00ZVYN666VLN :NID)
pPayiwi jeAud sj23)s eAuep



Vanya Steels Private Limited

(CIN: U74999KA2005PTC125578)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amount are in ¥ Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

...Continued from previous page

b

).

(i).

Fair value hierarchy
Level 1: It includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities
included in Level 3 is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market
transactions and dealer quotes of similar instruments.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets and liabilities, approximates the fair values, due to their short-term nature. Fair
value of financial assets and financial liabilities is similar to the carrying value as there is no significant differences between carrying value and fair value.

Valuation processes
The Management performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes on a periodic basis, including level 3 fair values.

Fi ial risk g t

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
* Credit risk
= Liquidity risk

= Market risk

Credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the Balance Sheet:

Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Investments 47.77 45.70 45.01
Trade receivables 1,625.94 1,925.76 2,094.41
Cash and cash equivalents 845.60 494.42 10.50
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 29.52 28.51 2745
Other financial assets 501.24 243.04 188.84

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from
the Company'’s receivables from customers.

The Company's credit risk is primarily to the amount due from customers and loans. The Company maintains a defined credit policy and monitors the exposures to these
credit risks on an ongoing basis. Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with scheduled commercial banks with high
credit ratings assigned by domestic credit rating agencies.

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables. Trade receivables are unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from
customers primarily located in India. The Company does monitor the economic environment in which it operates and the Company manages its Credit risk through credit
approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring credit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

On adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that
represents its expected credit losses in respect of trade receivable. The management uses a simplified approach (i.e. based on lifetime ECL) for the purpose of impairment loss
allowance, the Company estimates amounts based on the business environment in which the Company operates, and management considers that the trade receivables are in
default (credit impaired) when counter party fails to make payments as per terms of sale/service agreements. However the Company based upon historical experience
determine an impairment allowance for loss on receivables.

When a trade receivable is credit impaired, it is written off against trade receivables and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to the income statement.

The gross carrying amount of trade receivables is  1,806.31 Lacs (March 31, 2021: % 2,000.66 Lacs and April 1, 2020: % 2,162.24 Lacs). Trade receivables are generally realised
within the credit period.

The Company believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are still collectible in full, based on historical payment behaviour.

The Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables are as follows:

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020

Not due - - -
0-90 days past due 1,506.37 1,684.15 1,765.51
90 to 180 days past due 3011 031 9323
180-365 days 13.41 52.16 25037
365-730 days 41.10 226.71 3839
More than 730 days 215.32 37.33 14.74
Total ; 1,806.31 2,000.66 2,162.24

...Continued on next page
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Movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables:

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Balance at the beginning 74.90 67.83
Impairment loss recognised 105.47 8.42
Impairment loss utilised - (1.35)
Balance at the end 180.37 74.90

(ii).

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are
fallen due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation.

The Company believes that its liquidity position of Z 845.60 Lacs as at March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021: ¥ 494.42 Lacs and April 1, 2020: Z 10.50 Lacs) and the anticipated future
internally generated funds from operations will enable it to meet its future known obligations in the ordinary course of business.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of credit facilities
to meet obligations when due. The Company's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and funding from
Company companies to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term.

The Company's liquidity management process as monitored by management, includes the following:
- Day to Day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met.
- Maintaining rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows.

Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date:

Comving Contractual cash flows
As at March 31, 2022 Between one to More than
amount Less than one year : 3 Total
five years five years
Borrowings 10,484.03 6,910.33 3,306.11 267.59 10,484.03
Lease liabilities 573 37 436 - 573
Trade payables 2,052.14 2,052.14 - - 2,052.14
Other financial liabilities 247.02 247.02 - - 247.02
Total 12,788.92 9,210.86 3,310.47 267.59 12,788.92
Carrying Contractual cash flows
As at March 31, 2021 Between one to More than
amount Less than one year g Total
five years five years
Borrowings 4,741.27 2,195.94 1,885.81 659.52 4,741.27
Lease liabilities 7.00 1.26 5.74 - 7.00
Trade payables 1,240.60 1,240.60 - - 1,240.60
Other financial liabilities 73.05 73.05 - - 73.05
Total 6,061.92 3,510.85 1,891.55 659.52 6,061.92
: Carrying Contractual cash flows
As at April 1, 2020 Between one to More than
amount Less than one year Total
five years five years
Borrowings 3,518.45 1,003.01 2,424.74 90.70 3,51845
Trade payables 1,622.68 1,622.68 - - 1,622.68
Other financial liabilities 94.86 94.86 - - 94.86
Total 5,235.99 2,720.55 2,424.74 90.70 5,235.99

(iii). Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest
rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, the Company mainly has exposure to two type of market risk namely: currency risk and interest rate risk. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

a. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s main interest rate risk
arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The Company's interest rate risk arises majorly from the term loans from banks carrying floating rate of interest. These obligations exposes the Company to cash flow interest
rate risk. Thgﬂgxposure,pf the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes as rep%ﬁ?@a{@gement at the end of the reportin
Pt P 0D D VI o\
\ /\qm &
N

eriod are as follows:
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Variable-rate instruments Asat St Gt

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Secured term loans 4,071.39 2,246.92 1,332.96
Working capital demand loans 1,000.00 - -
Cash credits 4,984.93 1,868.12 838.44
Total 10,056.32 4,115.04 2,171.40

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting period.

For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A
50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
50 bps increase 50 bps decrease 50 bps increase 50 bps decrease

Secured term loans

For the year ended March 31, 2022 (20.36) 20.36 (15.23) 15.23

For the year ended March 31, 2021 (11.23) 11.23 (8.41) 841
Working capital demand loans

For the year ended March 31, 2022 (5.00) 5.00 (3.74) 374

For the year ended March 31, 2021 - - - -
Cash credits

For the year ended March 31, 2022 (24.92) 2492 (18.65) 18.65

For the year ended March 31, 2021 (9.34) 934 (6.99) 6.99

...Continued on next page
b. Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed to the effects
of fluctuation in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows to the extent of earnings and expenses in foreign currencies. Exposure
arises primarily due to exchange rate fluctuations between the functional currency and other currencies from the Company's operating, investing and financing activities.

Exposure to foreign currency risk
The Company has no foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period, therefore, there is no exposure to currency

risk.
Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the

I\-Aanagement assesses the Company's capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure. The Company manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may return capital to shareholders, raise new debt or issue new shares.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt to capital ratio, which is calculated as interest-bearing debts divided by total capital (equity attributable to owners of
the parent plus interest-bearing debits).

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Borrowings 10,484.03 4,741.27 3,518.45
Less: Cash and bank balances 875.12 522.93 37.95
Adjusted net debt (A) 9,608.91 4,218.34 3,480.50
Total equity (B) 5,341.86 3,357.51 2,205.48
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (A/B) 180% 126% 158%

...Space intentionally left blank...
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A. Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Income tax expense

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Current tax 661.74 25.15
Deferred tax expense
Change in recognised temporary differences 15.03 362.87
676.77 388.02
B. Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income For the year ended March 31, 2022
Before Tax (expense)/ Net
tax income of tax
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of equity instruments - - -
Remeasurements of defined benefit obligations 9.49 2.39 7.10
9.49 2.39 7.10
For the year ended March 31, 2021
Before Tax (expense)/ Net
tax income of tax
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of equity instruments - - -
Remeasurements of defined benefit obligations 4.01 1.01 3.00
4.01 1.01 3.00
C. Reconciliation of effective tax rate For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rate Amount Rate Amount
Profit before tax from continuing operations 25.17% 2,654.02 25.17% 1,537.05
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 667.96 386.84
Tax effect of:
Finance costs on preference shares 7.61 3.60
Finance costs on unsecured loans 10.58 39.56
Finance incone on deferred fair value gain on account of preference shares (11.98) (5.98)
Finance incone on deferred fair value gain on account of unsecured loans (10.64) (40.04)
Expenditures disallowed under the Income Tax Act 11.80 4.89
Other adjustments 1.44 (0.85)
676.77 388.02
D. Movement in deferred tax balances As at Recognised Recognised As at
March 31, 2021 in P&L in OCI March 31, 2022
Deferred tax assets
Security deposits - 0.19 - 0.19
Trade receivables 18.85 26.55 - 45.40
Provisions for employee benefits 9.88 2:53 (2.39) 10.02
Contract liability as per Ind AS 115 8.08 1.02 - 9.10
Leases 0.02 0.05 - 0.07
Sub- Total (a) 36.83 30.34 (2.39) 64.78
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant & equipment 222.03 46.10 = 268.13
Borrowings 3.70 (0.74) - 297
Sub- Total (b) 225.74 45.36 - 271.10
Deferred tax liabilities (net) (b) - (a) 2.39 206.32
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Movement in deferred tax balances

Deferred tax assets

Unabsorbed losses

Trade receivables

Provisions for employee benefits
Contract liability as per Ind AS 115
Leases

Sub- Total (a)

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant & equipment
Borrowings

Sub- Total (b)

Deferred tax liabilities (net) (b) - (a)

As at Recognised Recognised As at
April 1, 2020 in P&L in OCl March 31, 2021
366.73 (366.73) - -
17.07 1.78 - 18.85
6.61 4.27 (1.01) 9.88
- 8.08 - 8.08
- 0.02 - 0.02
390.42 (352.57) (1.01) 36.83
215.08 6.95 - 222.03
0.36 335 - 3.70
215.44 10.30 - 225.74
(174.98) 362.87 1.01 188.90

...Space intentionally left blank...
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A1

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

A2

(i)

First time adoption of Ind AS

The Company has prepared its first Financial Statements in accordance with Ind AS for the year ended March 31, 2022. For periods up to and including
the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with Indian GAAP, including accounting standards notified
under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) (“previous GAAP"). The effective date for Company’s Ind AS Opening Balance
Sheet is April 1, 2020 (the date of transition to Ind AS).

The accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022, the comparative
information presented in these financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS Balance Sheet at
April 1, 2020 (the Company's date of transition). According to Ind AS 101, the first Ind AS Financial Statements must use recognition and measurement
principles that are based on standards and interpretations that are effective at March 31, 2022, the date of first-time preparation of Financial Statements
according to Ind AS. These accounting principles and measurement principles must be applied retrospectively to the date of transition to Ind AS and for
all periods presented within the first Ind AS Financial Statements.

Any resulting differences between carrying amounts of assets and liabilities according to Ind AS 101 as of April 1, 2020 compared with those presented
in the Indian GAAP Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2020, were recognized in equity under retained earnings (or, if appropriate, another category of equity)
within the Ind AS Balance Sheet.

An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows
is set out in the following tables and notes:

Exceptions and exemptions availed

In the Ind AS Opening Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2020, the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities from the Indian GAAP as at 31 March 2020 are
generally recognized and measured according to Ind AS in effect as on March 31, 2022. For certain individual cases, however, Ind AS 101 provides for
mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions to the general principles of retrospective application of Ind AS. The Company has used the following
exceptions and exemptions in preparing its Ind AS Opening Balance Sheet:

Ind AS mandatory exceptions

Estimates

An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in
accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those
estimates were in error. Ind AS estimates as at April 1, 2020 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous
GAAP. The Company made estimates for Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model in accordance with Ind AS at the date of
transition as these were not required under previous GAAP.

Classification and measurement of financial assets
Ind AS 101 requires the company to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as at the date of transition.
Further, the standard permits measurement of financial assets accounted on amortised cost basis on fact and circumstances existing as at the date of
transition, if retrospective application is impracticable.

Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as at the date of
transition. Measurement of financial assets has been done retrospectively except where the same is impracticable.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
As per Ind AS 101 an entity should apply derecognition requirements in Ind AS 109 prospectively for transaction occurring on or after the date of
transition to Ind AS.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company has applied exception related to impairment of financial assets given in Ind AS 101. It has used reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date that financial assets were initially recognised and compared that to
the credit risk at April 1, 2020.

Ind AS optional exemptions

Deemed cost

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the
financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of
transition. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets and investment property covered by Ind AS 40

Investment Properties.




Vanya Steels Private Limited
(CIN: U74999KA2005PTC125578)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,

(All amount are in  Lacs, unless otherwise stated)
...Continued from previous page

(ii) Leases

2022

Para 9 of Ind AS 116 requires an entity to assess whether a contract or arrangement contains a lease at the inception of the contract or arrangement. A
first-time adopter may assess whether a contract existing at the date of transition to Ind ASs contains a lease by applying Ind AS 116 to those contracts

on the basis of facts and circumstances existing at that date.

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income for prior periods. The following tables represent the reconciliation from

previous GAAP to Ind AS:

B. Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS

Notes to first

As at April 1, 2020

: 3 Amount as per Effect of transition Amount as per
time adoption 2
previous GAAP* to Ind AS Ind AS
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant & equipment 3,625.57 - 3,625:57
Capital work-in-progress 5993 - 59.93
Financial assets
Investments 45.01 - 45.01
Other financial assets 4468 - 44.68
Deferred tax assets (net) (i) 240.72 (65.74) 174.98
Other non-current assets 170.48 - 170.48
4,186.40 (65.74) 4,120.65
Current assets
Inventories 2,005.27 - 2,005.27
Financial assets
Trade receivables (b) 2,160.79 (66.38) 2,094.41
Cash and cash equivalents 10.50 - 10.50
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 27.45 - 2745
Loans 0.66 - 0.66
Other financial assets 144.16 - 144.16
Current tax assets (net) 43.84 - 43.84
Other current assets 351.87 - 351.87
4,744.54 (66.38) 4,678.16
8,930.94 (132.12) 8,798.381
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital (d) 1,795.02 (279.00) 1,516.02
Other equity (k) 820.16 (130.70) 689.46
2,615.18 (409.70) 2,205.48
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (c), (d), (e) & (g) 2,613.89 (98.45) 2,515.44
Provisions 19.42 - 19.42
Other non-current liabilities (d) & (e) 423.58 376.03 799.61
3,056.89 277.58 3,334.47
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Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions

* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this note.

B. Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant & equipment
Right-of-use assets
Capital work-in-progress
Financial assets

Investments

Other financial assets
Other non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Loans

Other financial assets
Current tax assets (net)
Other current assets

Equity and Liabilities
Equity

Equity share capital
Other equity

1,003.01 - 1,003.01
1,622.68 - 1,622.68
94.86 - 94.86
53145 - 53145
6.86 - 6.86
3,258.85 - 3,258.86
8,930.93 (132.12) 8,798.81
Notesto finst As at March 31, 2021
< i Amount as per Effect of tr 1t as per
time adoption _
previous GAAP* to Ind AS Ind AS
3,465.04 - 3,465.04
(a) - 6.91 6.91
221.60 - 221.60
45.70 - 45.70
44.68 - 44.68
642.92 - 642.92
4,419.95 6.91 4,426.85
3,157.27 - 3,157.27
(b) 1,994.87 (69.11) 1,925.76
494.42 - 494.42
28.51 - 28.51
118 - %13
198.36 - 198.36
46.00 - 46.00
369.66 - 369.66
6,290.21 (69.11) 6,221.11
10,710.16 (62.20) 10,647.96
(d) 2,215.02 (699.00) 1,516.02
(k) 1,971.32 (129.83) 1,841.49
4,186.33 (828.83) 3,357.51
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Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings (c), (d), (e) & (q) 2,395.25 150.08 2,545.33
Lease liabilities (a) - 5.74 5.74
Provisions 26.28 - 26.28
Deferred tax liabilities (net) (i) 134.32 54.58 188.90
Other non-current liabilities (d) & (e) 99.15 522.85 622.00
2,655.00 733.25 3,388.25

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities
Borrowings 2,195.94 - 2,195.94
Lease liabilities (a) - 1.26 1.26
Trade payables 1,240.60 - 1,240.60
Other financial liabilities 73.05 - 73.05
Other current liabilities (h) 346.26 32.12 378.38
Provisions 1297 - 1297

Current tax liabilities (net) 5 & o

3,868.82 33.38 3,902.20
10,710.15 (62.20) 10,647.96

* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this note.

Reconciliations of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2021

Notes to first Amount as per Effect of transition Amount as per
time adoption previous GAAP* to Ind AS Ind AS

Income
Revenue from operations (h) 31,783.46 (32.13) 31.751.33
Other income (d) & (e) 7.36 182.87 190.23
Total Income 31,790.82 150.74 31,941.56
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 29,160.29 - 29,160.29
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade, finished goods (708.40) (708.40)
and work-in-progress -
Employee benefit expense f) 276.46 4.00 280.46
Finance costs (a), (d), (e) & (g) 292.99 158.40 451.39
Depreciation and amortisation expense (a) 207.74 043 208.17
Other expenses (a) & (b) 1,010.40 220 1,012.60
Total Expenses 30,239.48 165.03 30,404.51
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax 1,551.34 (14.29) 1,537.05
Less: Exceptional items = - -
Profit/(Loss) before tax 1,551.34 (14.29) 1,537.05
Tax expenses
Current tax 25:15 - 2515
Deferred tax charge/(benefit) (i) 375.04 (12.17) 362.87

400.19 (12.17) 388.02
Profit/(Loss) after tax 1,151.15 (2.12) 1,149.03

...Continued on next page
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Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of equity instruments - 5 =

- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (f) & () - 4.01 401

- Income tax relating to these items (i) - (1.01) (1.01)

- 3.00 3.00

Total comprehensive income/(loss) 1,151.15 0.88 1,152.03

* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this note.

D. Reconciliations of total equity as at March 31, 2021 and April 1, 2020

Notes to first time As at As at
adoption March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020

Total equity (shareholders' fund) as per previous GAAP 4,186.33 2,615.18
Adjustments:
Preference share capital (d) (699.00) (279.00)
Expected credit loss on trade receivables (b) (69.11) (66.38)
Finance costs on preference shares (d) (14.44) (0.15)
Finance income on deferred fair value gain on account of preference shares (d) 2397 0.21
Finance income on deferred fair value gain on account of unsecured loans (e) 159.10 -
Finance costs on unsecured loans (e) (157.18) -
Finance costs on lease liabilities (a) (0.19) -
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (a) (0.43) -
Reversal of lease rent expenses (a) 0.53 -
Borrowings - transaction costs (c) 14.72 1.42
Contract liability as per Ind AS 115 (h) (32.12)
Prior period errors (9) (0.08) (0.05)
Deferred tax (i) (54.59) (65.74)
Total adjustments (828.82) (409.70)
Total equity as per Ind AS 3,357.51 2,205.48

E. Reconciliations of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2021

Notes to first time For the year ended
adoption March 31, 2021

Profit after tax as per previous GAAP 15115
Adjustments:
Expected credit loss on trade receivables (b) (2.73)
Finance costs on preference shares (d) (14.30)
Finance income on deferred fair value gain on account of preference shares (d) 23.77
Finance income on deferred fair value gain on account of unsecured loans (e) 159.10
Finance costs on unsecured loans (e) (157.18)
Finance costs on lease liabilities (a) 0.19)
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (@) (0.43)
Reversal of lease rent expenses (@) 0.53
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (f) 4.01)
Borrowings - transaction costs (c) 1330
Prior period errors (9) (0.03)
Contract liability as per Ind AS 115 (h) (32.12)
Deferred tax (i) 1217
Total adjustments (2.12)

1,149.03

Profit after tax as per Ind AS

...Continued on next page
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of equity instruments -

- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (f) & () 4.01
- Income tax relating to these items (i) (1.01)
Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS 1,152.03

Reconciliations of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars Notes to first Amount as per Effect of transition Amount as per
time adoption previous GAAP to Ind AS Ind AS

Cash flows from operating activities () 1,099.55 (1,188.05) (88.50)

Cash flows from investing activities (1) (209.57) 188.51 (21.06)

Cash flows from financing activities (1 (405.01) 998.49 593.48
Notes to first-time adoption:

Leases

Indian GAAP requires accounting of leases as either operating lease or finance lease. Ind AS 116 requires recognition of right-of-use asset and lease
liability for all leases except short term lease and lease of low value assets. Under Indian GAAP, the Company had accounted for its lease as
operating lease and recognised lease rent as expense in Statement of Profit & Loss. On transition to Ind AS, the Company has recognised right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of ¥ 7.34 Lacs each at initial recognition and depreciation on right-of-use assets of ¥ 0.43 Lacs and finance cost on lease
liabilities of ¥ 0.19 Lacs for the year ended March 31, 2021 and reversed the lease rent expenses of ¥ 0.53 Lacs.

Trade receivables - Expected credit loss (ECL)

Under Previous GAAP, provision for doubtful loans and receivables was calculated using lncurred loss model. Under Ind AS, the provision on financial
assets and commitments, including trade receivables needs to be calculated using the expected credit loss model. Accordingly, an additional provision
was recognized as at April 1, 2020 of % 66.38 Lacs and ¥ 2.73 Lacs as at March 31, 2021. As a result, the total equity was decreased by ¥ 66.38 Lacs
and ¥ 69.11 Lacs as on April 1, 2020 & March 31, 2021 respectively and the profit for the year ended March 31, 2021 decreased by ¥ 2.73 Lacs.

Borrowing - Transaction costs

Under Previous GAAP, borrowings were recorded at cost and transaction costs were charged to Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred.
Under Ind AS, transaction cost incurred towards origination of borrowings is required to be deducted from the carrying amount of borrowings on initial
recognition. These cost are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the borrowing as part of interest expense by applying
effective interest rate method. Accordingly, borrowings as at April 1, 2020 have been reduced by % 1.42 Lacs and ¥ 14.72 Lacs as at March 31, 2021.
The total equity increased by an equivalent amount and the profit for the year ended March 31, 2021 increased by ¥ 13.30 Lacs.

Preference share capital

Schedule Ill as applicable to financial statements prepared under Ind AS requires the Preference share capital to be classified as Debt or Equity
instrument according to the nature of financial instrument received. Accordingly, preference share capital paid up amounting to ¥ 279.00 Lacs
consisting of 27,90,000 0.01% non-convertible non-cumulative redeemable preference shares of ¥ 10 each as at April 1, 2020 and % 699.00 Lacs
consisting of 69,90,000 0.01% non-convertible non-cumulative redeemable preference shares of ¥ 10 each as at March 31, 2021 have been
reclassified under debt or equity component of shares.

Accordingly, financial liability component of ¥ 90.55 Lacs and deferred fair value gain of  188.45 Lacs retrospectively and finance costs of  0.15 Lacs
and finance income of  0.21 Lacs upto April 1, 2020 and finance costs of ¥ 11.37 Lacs and finance income of ¥ 18.85 Lacs for the year ended March
31, 2021 have been recognised.

Further for preference shares issued during FY 2020-21 amounting to ¥ 420.00 Lacs consisting of 42,00,000 0.01% non-convertible non-cumulative

preference shares of ¥ 10 each, financial liability component of ¥ 132.35 Lacs and deferred fair value gain of ¥ 287.65 Lacs at initial recognition and
finance costs of ¥ 2.92 Lacs and finance income of ¥ 4.92 Lacs for the year ended March 31, 2021 have been recognised.

...Continued on next page
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(e)

)

(9)

(h)

(O]

(k)

(U]

Interest free unsecured loans

Ind AS 109 requires fair valuation of financial liabilities. The Company has estimated fair value of its interest free unsecured loans from related parties and
others and recognised the difference between amount of loan and fair value as deferred fair value gain amounting to ¥ 187.78 Lacs as at April 1, 2020
and 2 70.72 Lacs as at March 31, 2021. Further the Company has recognised finance costs of Z 157.18 Lacs and finance income of  159.10 Lacs for the
year ended March 31, 2021.

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation

Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net interest expense on
the net defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss. Under the previous GAAP, these measurements
were forming part of the profit or loss for the year. As a result of this change, the profit for the year ended March 31, 2021 decreased by Z 4.01 Lacs.
There is no impact on the total equity as at March 31, 2021.

Prior period errors
The Company has recorded some expenditure of previous financial year after signing of previous financial statements. Now, the same has been rectified
retrospectively.

Revenue from operations - contract liability

Ind AS 115 requires determination of transaction price which may vary because of discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price concessions, incentives,
performance bonuses, or other similar items. The Company has estimated the amount of rebates, price concessions etc. and revenue has been decreased
by ¥ 32.12 Lacs for the year ended March 31, 2021, contract liability of  32.12 Lacs has been recognised as at March 31, 2021 and the total equity
decreased by an equivalent amount as at March 31, 2021.

Deferred tax

Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and
accounting profits for the period. Ind-AS 12 "Income Taxes" requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which
focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind-AS 12
approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under Indian GAAP.

Other comprehensive income

Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in profit or loss for the period, unless a standard requires or
permits otherwise. ltems of income and expense that are not recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the statement of profit and loss as other
comprehensive income’ includes remeasurements of defined benefit plans and fair value gains or (losses) on FVOCI equity instruments. The concept of
other comprehensive income did not exist under previous GAAP.

Other equity
Retained earnings have been impacted consequent to the above Ind AS transition adjustments.

Cash flows statement
The transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has not had a material impact statement on cash flows except for the reclassifications of various assets and
liabilities.
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The Parliament of India has approved new Labour Codes which would impact the contributions by the Company towards Provident Fund,
Employee State Insurance and Gratuity. The effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and the rules are yet to be
framed. The Company will carry out an evaluation of the impact and record the same in the financial statements in the period in which the Codes
become effective and the related rules are published.

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck-off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the
Companies Act, 1956.

The Company does not have any immovable property (other than properties where the Company is a lessee and the lease agreements are duly
executed in the favour of the lessee) whose title deeds are not held in the name of the Company.

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any
Benami property.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with
the understanding that the Intermediary shall

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies ("ROC") beyond the statutory
period.

The Company has not done any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961).

The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or other lender in accordance with the guidelines on
wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

The Company has not used any borrowings from banks and financial institutions for purpose other than for which it was taken.

Due to spread of 'COVID-19' pandemic the Government imposed a nationwide lockdown and other restrictions on movement with effect from
March 25, 2020. Consequently, the Company's offices were closed and operations temporarily suspended since then. The Company has drawn
projected cash flow for the next one year, based on certain assumptions and has concluded that the Company will have sufficient liquidity to
continue its operations. In assessing the recoverability of its current assets including trade receivables, loan and advances, the Company has
considered internal and external information upto the date of approval of these financial statements, has performed sensitivity analysis on the
assumptions based on current indicators of the future economic conditions and considered the same in preparing these financial results. The
Company is confident of recovering the carrying amount of these assets.

However, the impact of the pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements and the

management will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.
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These financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on September 27, 2022.

There are no standards that are issued but not yet effective on March 31, 2022.

Pursuant to the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated March 24, 2021, in respect of changes incorporated in Schedule Il

of the Companies Act, 2013, the figures for the corresponding previous periods/year have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to
make them comparable.
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Partner Director Director Company Secretary
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